
Tuesday, 30 October 2018 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 8 November 2018, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 7 November 2018 - by notifying the Officer named on the report 
of the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  NOMINATION TO LIST ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE  3 - 26 

 To consider the nominations to enter Glass Knott Wood and Yewbarrow Wood, 
Rusland, Ulverston, on South Lakeland District Council’s list of Assets of 
Community Value. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 8 November 2018 

Nomination to list Assets of Community Value 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Graham Vincent - Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: David Sykes - Director of People and Places 

Report Author: Tom Dugdale - Research and Information Officer 

Wards:  Broughton & Coniston; 

Forward Plan: N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The nominations will be accepted as assets of community value and placed on the 
successful list for assets of community value. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is proposed that the nomination for Glass Knott Wood and Yewbarrow Wood 
as identified on the plans attached to this report be approved as assets of 
community value. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The nomination to list Glass Knott Wood as an asset of community value was 
submitted by Colton Parish Council on 1 October 2018. 

3.2 The nomination to list Yewbarrow Wood as an asset of community value was 
submitted by Colton Parish Council on 8 October 2018. 

3.3 The Lake District National Park currently own the land but have no plans to sell in the 
near future. However long-term this stance may change. 

3.4 In the nomination the Parish Council state that Glass Knott Wood and Yewbarrow 
Wood are used daily by local people and visitors for exercise and contemplation. 

3.5 The nomination also mentions the link to the Rusland Horizon Landscape Scheme, 
which uses the woods to promote natural heritage, woodland skills and management, 
biodiversity, industrial archaeology, and greenwood trails to the community. 

3.6 In addition, the woods are also an important part of the community’s landscape that 
contributes to the overall sense of place, identity, and community spirit. 

3.7 The community feels very strongly about keeping Glass Knott and Yewbarrow 
Woods well managed, maintained, and open to the public. 

3.8 Glass Knott Wood and Yewbarrow Wood both meet the criteria necessary to be 
accepted as assets of community value. It is also clear that this nomination is in the 
spirit of the legislation that gives communities the right to nominate assets. 

3.9 The Council has approved nominations of similar assets to be registered as assets of 
community value such as; Stony Hazel Wood, Craggy Wood, and Lady Wood. 

Page 3

Item No.1



 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Council notified the owner (Lake District National Park Authority) of the 
nominations. They have no intention to sell the land in the near future, but long term 
this stance may change. 

4.2 The assessment of the nominations was carried out by Officers from the Partnerships 
and Organisational Development Team. 

4.3 In line with the Cabinet decision on 28 November 2012, delegated authority is given 
to the Director of People and Places to make the determination as to whether the 
nominated assets are added to the list. 

4.4 In accordance with Section 91 of the Localism Act the Council will send notice to all 
relevant parties of its decision in respect of the nominations. 

4.5 The District Councillors for the Broughton and Coniston ward have been informed of 
the nominations. Cllr Tracey Coward enquired about the nomination and the asset of 
community value process, and supports the proposals. 

 5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There is no alternative option as to decline the nomination would contravene the 
legislation. Under Section 89 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council can only enter 
assets into the list of Assets of Community Value in response to community 
nominations. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 An ambition of the Council Plan 2014-2019 is as follows: 

”We will continue to work with our community and voluntary organisations, to 
increase the reach and scope of their work”. 

 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1 There are no financial or resources implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resources implications. 

Legal 

7.3.1 Under Section 87 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must maintain a list of assets 
of community value. 

7.3.2 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land is an asset of 
community value if, in the opinion of the authority: 

 the current (ancillary) use of the building or other land furthers the 
social wellbeing or social interests of the local community. 
 

 there is evidence that there is a non-ancillary use of the building or 
other land which can further the social wellbeing or social interests of 
the local community. 

 

Page 4



A building or other land is not an asset of community value if, in the opinion of the 
local authority: 

 in the recent past the actual use of the building or other land was not 
used to furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local 
community 

 there is evidence that there is not a non-ancillary use of the building or 
other land which can further the social wellbeing or social interests of 
the local community. 

 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out.  A building or other land 
is an asset of community value if its main use has recently been or is presently used 
to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community and could do 
so in the future.  The Localism Act 2011 states that social interests include cultural, 
recreational and sporting interests. 

7.4.2 The inclusion of assets on the List of Assets of Community Value is recorded as a 
local land charge under the Local Land Charges Act 1975.  The Council is required 
under Schedule 4 of the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulation 2012 to 
apply to the Land Registry for a restriction to be added to the registered title of the 
land that “no transfer or lease is to be registered without a certificate signed by a 
conveyancer that the transfer or lease did not contravene Section 95(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011”. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.5.2 The Impact Assessment published by Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) indicates there are no foreseeable adverse impacts on any 
single equality group arising out of the legislation relating to Assets of Community 
Value. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Timescales for responses and 
publication of lists  

Compliance for responses 
to nominations, 
notifications and the 
publication of lists of 
successful and 
unsuccessful nominations 

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Administer any initial appeals in 
respect of either nominations or 
compensation decisions 

Meeting the requirements 
expected of the council 

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Listed asset of community value 
not added to the local land 
charge register 

Reputational challenge Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Contact Officers 

Tom Dugdale – Research and Information Officer: 793269 t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Jemma Fells – Project Support Officer: 793278 jemma.fells@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Page 5

mailto:t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:jemma.fells@southlakeland.gov.uk


Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Glass Knott Wood nomination – Submitted by Colton Parish Council 

2 Map of Glass Knott Wood – Submitted by Colton Parish Council 

3 Yewbarrow Wood nomination – Submitted by Colton Parish Council 

4 Map of Yewbarrow Wood – Submitted by Colton Parish Council 

5 Assessment of Assets of Community Form 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Community Right to Bid: No-
statutory advice for local 
authorities 

DCLG Website 

CEX/98 – Community Right to Bid SLDC Website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 18/10/2018 

Section 151 Officer 18/10/2018 

Monitoring Officer 18/10/2018 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 18/10/2018 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 18/10/2018 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Senior Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

http://sharepoint/sites/policy/intelligence/Assets%20of%20Community%20Value%20%20Admin%20%20Guidance/Guidance,%20reports,%20notes%20and%20old%20things/Right%20to%20Bid%20-%20Non-Statutory%20Advice%20Note.pdf
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=3197


Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

South Lakeland District Council - Asset of 
Community ValueNomination Form 

Before completing this form please read the material at www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Section A – Organisation 

Name of organisation COLTON PARISH COUNCIL 

Address (including 
postcode) 

3, HOME FARM COTTAGES, 
GRIZEDALE, 
AMBLESIDE 
LA22 0QN 

Contact (name) KAREN BIRCH 

Position in organisation CLERK 

Address of contact 
(including postcode) 

3, HOME FARM COTTAGES, 
GRIZEDALE, 
AMBLESIDE 
LA22 0QN 

Telephone no. 01229 860115 

Email address Coltonpc@btinternet.com 

Type of organisation 

Description Applying as: Registration no. of charity 
and/or company (if applicable) 

Neighbourhood forum (as defined 
by in Localism Act) 

Parish Council tick 

Charity 

Community interest group 

Unincorporated body 

Company limited by guarantee 

Industrial and provident society 

A1. Local Connection 

Your organisation must have a local connection, which means that its activities are wholly or partially 
concerned with the administrative area of South Lakeland District Council or neighbouring authority. 
 
LOCAL PARISH COUNCIL 

APPENDIX 1

Page 7

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 
A2. Number of members registered to vote locally (unincorporated bodies only) 

 
A3. Distribution of surplus funds (certain types of organisations – see below) 

 
 
A4. Your organisations rules: Please send us the relevant type of document for your 
organisation and indicate which it is: 
 

 Please tick: 

Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a company)  

Trust Deed (for a trust)  

Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations) As for Parish Councils 
statutory duties and 
powers 

 
 

Section B – Information on the nomination 
 
What is being nominated 
 
 

 
SEMI NATURAL WOODLAND 

Name of the premises/land 
 
 

 
GLASS KNOTT WOODS 

Address (including postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RUSLAND, 
ULVERSTON 
LA12 8LA 

 
B1. The nomination form must include a map, which clearly states the boundaries of the 
premises or land that you are nominating.Please include with the nomination form. 
 
B2. Owners and other with interests in the building or land: 

In the case of unincorporated bodies at least 21 of the members must be registered to vote locally. If they are 

registered to vote in a neighbouring local authority please indicate where. 

578 REGISTERED VOTORS 

If your organisation is an unincorporated body, a company limited by guarantee, or an industrial and 

provident society, its rules must provide that any surplus funds are not distributed to members. Surplus funds 

must be applied in part or whole for the benefit of the local area. If relevant, please confirm that this is the 

case. 

 

N/A 

Page 8



Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 

 Name(s) Address(es) 

Current 
occupants 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Current or last 
known details of 
those owning the 
freehold of the 
land 
 
 
 
 

 
LAKE DISTRICT 
NATIONAL PARK 
AUTHORITY 

 
MURLEY MOSS, 
OXENHOLME 
KENDAL, 
LA9 7RL 

Current or last 
known details of 
those having a 
leasehold interest 
in the land 
 
 
 
 

  

 
B3. Why do you think the building or land is of community value? 
 

Does this use further the social 
well-being and social interest of 
the community? 
 
Include information on: 

 the current level of use 
and who uses it 

 any used by particular 
communities of interest 
or need 

 

 
Glass Knott Wood is used frequently by local people 
and visitors as a quiet and peaceful area for exercise 
and contemplation. It features in many aspects of the 
Rusland Horizons Landscape Scheme, including 
woodland skills and management, biodiversity and 
wildlife projects. 

What do communities gain from 
their use of the asset and what 
would be the impact if it were 
lost? 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Members of the local community and visitors to the 
area gain health benefits from outdoor exercise, and 
also educationally and culturally from the various 
shared activities (eg.stone walling and coppicing) 
undertaken in the wood by the Rusland Horizons 
scheme. It is intended that a legacy scheme will 
continue the woodland management and biodiversity 
projects into the future for the benefit of the local 
community. 

What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which 
the asset supports? 

Physical and mental health benefits for an ageing local 
population. Reduced isolation and increasing social 
cohesion through community schemes undertaken.  

Page 9



Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 
Does the use of the asset do 
any of the following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members 
of the community 

 Reach vulnerable people 

 Support community 
cohesion and 
involvement 

 Enable communities to 
be self supporting 

 Increase access to 
positive activities 

 

 
 
 
 
Yes, very positively 
Yes, anyone can use the asset for free 
 
 
Yes, community schemes are very inclusive 
Yes, walking and working together helps both 
 
 
Yes, locally managed and supported groups are 
developing with the use of the woodland schemes 
 
Yes, walking in the woods and joining woodland 
community activities are very positive activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Does the community feel 
strongly that the asset should be 
retained as a community asset? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Yes, as evidenced by the policy to protect local 
community assets including woodlands, in the Colton 
Parish Council Community Led Plan. Also by the 
community involvement under the Rusland Horizons 
project to restore a bark-peelers hut, rebuild fallen dry 
stone walls and full cycle coppicing in the woods. 

Could the asset realistically 
continue to be used for this or 
another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be 
achieved within the next five 
years)? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Yes, it would be used in the beneficial way described 
indefinitely by the local community and under the 
proposed Rusland Horizons legacy plan. 

Page 10



Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 

Section C – Submitting this nomination 
 
C1. Please include the following before submitting your application: 

 The rules of your organisation 

 A map of the nominated building or land 
 
 
C2. Signature: 

By signing your name (if submitting by post) or typing it (if submitting by email) you are confirming that the 
contents of this form are correct, to the best of your knowledge. 

 
C3. Where to send this form: 
 
By post to: Partnerships and Organisational Development Team, South Lakeland District 
Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, LA9 4DQ 
 
By email to: policy@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Page 11

mailto:policy@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



APPENDIX 2 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



APPENDIX 3 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

South Lakeland District Council - Asset of 
Community Value Nomination Form 

 
Before completing this form please read the material at www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 
 

Section A – Organisation 

 

Name of organisation 

 
 
 

COLTON PARISH COUNCIL 

Address (including 
postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

3, HOME FARM COTTAGES, 
GRIZEDALE, 
AMBLESIDE, 
LA22 0QN 

Contact (name) 
 
 

KAREN BIRCH 

Position in 
organisation 

 
 

 
CLERK 

Address of contact 
(including postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3, HOME FARM COTTAGES, 
GRIZEDALE, 
AMBLESIDE, 
LA22 0QN 

Telephone no. 
 
 

 
01229 860115 

Email address 

 
 

clerk@coltonparishcouncil.org.uk 

 

Type of organisation 
 

Description Applying as: 
 

Registration no. of charity 
and/or company (if 
applicable) 

Neighbourhood forum (as 
defined by in Localism Act) 

  

Parish Council   

Charity   

Page 15

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


APPENDIX 3 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

Community interest group   

Unincorporated body   

Company limited by guarantee   

Industrial and provident society   

A1. Local Connection 

Parish Council 
 
A2. Number of members registered to vote locally (unincorporated bodies only) 
 

578 registered voters 

 

 

 

A3. Distribution of surplus funds (certain types of organisations – see below) 
n/a 

 
A4. Your organisations rules: Please send us the relevant type of document for your 
organisation and indicate which it is: 
 

 Please tick: 

Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a company)  

Trust Deed (for a trust)  

Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations)  

 
 

Section B – Information on the nomination 

 

What is being nominated 

 
 

SEMI NATURAL WOODLAND 

Name of the premises/land 

 
 

Yewbarrow Woods, including Border Moss 

Address (including postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

Rusland, 
Ulverston 
LA12 8JG 

 
B1. The nomination form must include a map, which clearly states the boundaries of 
the premises or land that you are nominating. Please include with the nomination 
form. 
 
B2. Owners and other with interests in the building or land: 
 

 Name(s) Address(es) 

Current 
occupants 

  

Page 16



APPENDIX 3 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 

Current or last 
known details of 
those owning 
the freehold of 
the land 

 

 
Lake District 
National Park 
Authority 

 
Murley Moss, 
Oxenholme Road, 
Kendal LA97RL 

Current or last 
known details of 
those having a 
leasehold 
interest in the 
land 

 

  

 
B3. Why do you think the building or land is of community value? 

 

Does this use further the 
social well-being and social 
interest of the community? 

 
Include information on: 

 the current level of use 
and who uses it 

 any used by particular 
communities of 
interest or need 

 

Yewbarrow Wood is used by local people and 
visitors on a daily basis as a quiet and peaceful 
area for exercise and wildlife study. It features in 
many aspects of the community based Rusland 
Horizons Landscape Scheme including full cycle 
coppicing, red squirrel and other wildlife projects, 
biodiversity, and footpath creation. Local LDNPA 
volunteers have also undertaken woodland 
management activities here. 

What do communities gain 
from their use of the asset 
and what would be the impact 
if it were lost? 

 
 

Members of the community gain health benefits 
from the outdoor exercise, and culturally and 
educationally through Rusland Horizon schemes. 
It is intended that a legacy organization will 
continue these projects. 

What is the nature of social 
well being and social interest 
which the asset supports? 

 
Does the use of the asset do 
any of the following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage 
members of the 
community 

 Reach vulnerable 
people 

 Support community 

Physical and mental health benefits from outdoor 
exercise for an ageing local population. 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes, very positively 

 
Yes, anyone can enjoy the woods for free 
 
 
Yes, walking and volunteer groups are very 
inclusive 
 
 

Page 17



APPENDIX 3 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

cohesion and 
involvement 

 Enable communities to 
be self supporting 

 Increase access to 
positive activities 

 

Yes, positively supports both 
 
 
Yes, locally managed and supported groups are 
being formed to support the activities 
Yes, walking in the woods and joining volunteer 
groups are very positive activities 
 

Does the community feel 
strongly that the asset should 
be retained as a community 
asset? 

 

Yes, evidenced by the policies adopted in the 
Colton Parish Council Community Led Plan and 
the support by the Rusland Horizons legacy 
planning. 

Could the asset realistically 
continue to be used for this or 
another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be 
achieved within the next five 
years)? 
 

Yes, it can be used indefinitely for walking and 
conservation work especially with support from the 
Rusland Horizons legacy projects 

 
Section C – Submitting this nomination 

 
C1. Please include the following before submitting your application: 

 The rules of your organisation 

 A map of the nominated building or land 

 
 
C2. Signature: Karen Birch 

 
By signing your name (if submitting by post) or typing it (if submitting by email) you are confirming that the 
contents of this form are correct, to the best of your knowledge. 
 
C3. Where to send this form: 
 
By post to: Partnerships and Organisational Development Team, South Lakeland 
District Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, LA9 4DQ 

 
By email to: policy@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 18

mailto:policy@southlakeland.gov.uk


APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



APPENDIX 5 

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council 

 

Nominate By: Colton Parish Council 

Number of Nominations: 1 

Date of Submission: 1st October 2018 

Address of Nomination: Glass Knott Wood, Rusland, Ulverston, LA12 8LA 

Date of DED: 8th November 2018 

 

Section One - Eligible Criteria 

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments 

Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate? 

 

 The Parish Council is the nominating 
body.  

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination? 

 

 It’s part of the scenery of their local 
area.  

Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value? 

  

 

 

 

Section Two – Determining Usage 

 YES NO Further Comments 

1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination? 

  Yes: Exercise, contemplation, 
features in the Rusland Horizons 
Landscape Scheme. 

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises? 

 

  

Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months? 

 

  

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community? 

   

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it? 

  The nomination describes the use as 
frequent by local people and visitors. 

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need?  

 Rusland Horizons Landscape Scheme 

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost? 

  Physical and mental health benefits, 
educational and cultural 
experiences, reduction in isolation. 

 

 

Page 21



APPENDIX 5 

 YES NO Further Comments 

3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports? 

  As previously mentioned, the 
nomination describes mental health 
benefits from community members 
that walk in the woods. 

Does the use of the asset do the  
following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 
 

  Community schemes in the woods 
increase social cohesion within an 
aging local population to reduce 
isolation. 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members of the 
community 

 

   

 Reach vulnerable people 
 

 

 Community schemes are very 
inclusive.  

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement 

 

  Walking and working together 
supports both 

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting 

 

  The Rusland Horizon Landscape 
Scheme is locally managed and aims 
to continue the woodland 
management and biodiversity 
projects in the future. 

 Increase access to positive 
activities 

 

 Walking and working in the woods, 
joining woodland community 
activities.  

 

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset? 

Yes. Evidenced by the policy to protect local 
community assets including woodland, in the 
Colton Parish Community Led Plan.   

 

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)? 

Yes. It would be used in the beneficial ways 
described indefinitely by the local community 
and under the proposed Rusland Horizons 
legacy plan. 

 

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land. 

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-

ancillary usage: 

 Yes No Comments 

Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose? 

   

Page 22



APPENDIX 5 

Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales? 

  The woods are currently fit for 
purpose, while there is a scheme in 
place to maintain the asset into the 
future. 

 

 

 

Recommendation and reasons for: 

 
Recommendation: Add the woods to the asset register. 
 
Reasons: 
Genuine asset – the nomination provides benefit to the community as described above, while 
there is also a scheme and a genuine interest for the community to protect the woods.  
 
Precedent – a similar area of woodland submitted by Colton Parish Council, as well as others in 
the district, have been successfully added to the register previously. In this case there are no 
underlying contentious reasons to adding this nomination to the register. 
  

 

  

Page 23



APPENDIX 5 

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council 

 

Nominate By: Colton Parish Council 

Number of Nominations: 1 

Date of Submission: 8th October 2018 

Address of Nomination: Yewbarrow Woods, Rusland, Ulverston, LA12 8LA 

Date of DED: 8th November 2018 

 

Section One - Eligible Criteria 

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments 

Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate? 

 

 The Parish Council is the nominating 
body.  

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination? 

 

 It’s part of the scenery of their local 
area.  

Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value? 

  

 

 

 

Section Two – Determining Usage 

 YES NO Further Comments 

1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination? 

  Yes: Exercise, contemplation, 
wildlife study. Features in the 
Rusland Horizons Landscape 
Scheme. 

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises? 

 

  

Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months? 

 

  

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community? 

   

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it? 

  The nomination describes the use as 
daily by local people and visitors. 

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need?  

 Rusland Horizons Landscape Scheme 

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost? 

  Physical and mental health benefits, 
educational and cultural 
experiences, reduction in isolation. 

 

 

Page 24



APPENDIX 5 

 YES NO Further Comments 

3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports? 

  As previously mentioned, the 
nomination describes mental health 
benefits from community members 
that walk in the woods. 

Does the use of the asset do the  
following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 
 

  Community schemes in the woods 
increase social cohesion within an 
aging local population to reduce 
isolation. 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members of the 
community 

 

   

 Reach vulnerable people 
 

 

 Community schemes are very 
inclusive.  

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement 

 

  Walking and working together 
supports both 

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting 

 

  The Rusland Horizon Landscape 
Scheme is locally managed and aims 
to continue the woodland 
management and biodiversity 
projects in the future. 

 Increase access to positive 
activities 

 

 Walking and working in the woods, 
joining woodland community 
activities.  

 

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset? 

Yes. Evidenced by the policy to protect local 
community assets including woodland, in the 
Colton Parish Community Led Plan.   

 

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)? 

Yes. It would be used in the beneficial ways 
described indefinitely by the local community 
and under the proposed Rusland Horizons 
legacy plan. 

 

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land. 

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-

ancillary usage: 

 Yes No Comments 

Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose? 

   

Page 25



APPENDIX 5 

Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales? 

  The woods are currently fit for 
purpose, while there is a scheme in 
place to maintain the asset into the 
future. 

 

 

 

Recommendation and reasons for: 

 
Recommendation: Add the woods to the asset register. 
 
Reasons: 
Genuine asset – the nomination provides benefit to the community as described above, while 
there is also a scheme and a genuine interest for the community to protect the woods.  
 
Precedent – a similar area of woodland submitted by Colton Parish Council, as well as others in 
the district, have been successfully added to the register previously. In this case there are no 
underlying contentious reasons to adding this nomination to the register. 
  

 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Nomination to list Assets of Community Value
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Appendix 1- Glass Knott Wood nomination – Submitted by Colton Parish Council
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Appendix 2 - Map of Glass Knott Wood – Submitted by Colton Parish Council
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value _ Appendix 3 - Yewbarrow Wood nomination – Submitted by Colton Parish Council
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Appendix 4 - Map of Yewbarrow Wood – Submitted by Colton Parish Council
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Appendix 5 - Assessment of Assets of Community Form


